
  

1. Call to order and confirmation of a quorum.  

a. Historic Resources Commission Charge:  The Historic Resources Commission is charged with 
promoting, enhancing, and preserving the character of the historic district as well as 
landmarks, including the Courthouse Square Historic District.  

2. Pledge of Allegiance and moment of silence  

3. Minutes review and approval  
a. Regular meeting: March, 2025 

4. Old Business  
a. COA2502- 7 SE Court Square (tabled in March)  

  
5. New Business  

a. COA 2507- 106 W Elm, Sighs 

b. COA2419- 112 N Main, Updated 

6. Updates  
a. Council  
b. Staff  

7. Adjournment  
                             

Historic Resources Commission    
Agenda |    April 1st , 2025       |    
6     pm Regular Meeting    



Minutes of the March 4, 2025 Historic Resource Commission 

The meeting was called to order by Chair Zipporah Clark Baldwin at 6:00 p.m. 

The following Commissioners were present:  Chair Zipporah Clark Baldwin, Jim Young, Ben Beushausen 
and and Karen Chin.   

Staff:  Planner Evan Workman & Zoning Enforcement Officer Jenni Bost 

Council: Joey Parsons 

Chair Zipporah Clark Baldwin led the Pledge of Allegiance, and a moment of silence.  

Chair Zipporah Clark Baldwin asked for a motion to approve the minutes for the January 7th, 2025 
meeting.  Karen Chin made a motion to approved the minutes.  Ben Beushausen seconded.  All voted 
aye. 
 
4-Old Business  
 
a.   COA 2410- Amendment request 

 
i. COA2410 (Amendment) - the applicant respectfully requests an amendment to the 

previously approved Certificate of Appropriateness for the building at 123 N Main St. 
Chair Zipporah Clark Baldwin made the 1st motion to open a public hearing, Karen Chin 
made the second. All voted Aye. Jeff Deal with Massey with Massey Real Estate in 
Burlington NC presented the following information: requesting reduction of the entry 
door height from 8 feet to 7, which will also result in an increased height in the band of 
windows above the doors. Chair Zipporah Clark Baldwin made a motion to close the 
public hearing, Karen Chin made the second. All voted Aye. Jim Young made a motion to 
approve the amendment to COA 2410, Ben Beushausen made the second. All voted aye.  
 

5-New Business 
 

a. COA 2501- 116 W Harden St -Renee Russell of 116 W Harden St spoke about the new 
Signs she wants to install. She had an example with her. Chair Zipporah Clark Baldwin 
Made the motion to open the public hearing, Ben made the second. All voted Aye.  Evan  
Gave the staff report. The commission asked Ms. Russell a few questions about the sign. 
Karen Chin made a motion to close the public hearing, Jim Young made the second. All 
voted aye. Chair Zipporah Clark Baldwin made the motion to approve COA 2501, Jim 
Young made the second.  All voted aye.  

 
b. COA 2502- 7 SE Court Square- No one was there to represent the applicant. Chair 

Zipporah Clark Baldwin made a motion to open the public hearing, Karen Chin made the 
second. All voted aye. Evan Workman gave staff report, applicant is wanting to replace 
windows. Chair Zipporah Clark Baldwin made a motion to close the public hearing, Ben 
Beushausen made the second motion. All voted aye.  Karen Chin said she moves to table 
COA 2502 for 7 SE Court Square in order for the Commission to seek guidance pursuant 



to the NC GS 160D-9-47(d). The application will be acted upon within a reasonable time 
period not to exceed 180 days. Ben Beushausen made the second motion. All voted aye. 
 

c. COA 2506- 129 W Harden St- Chair Zipporah Clark Baldwin made the motion to open the 
public hearing, Ben Beushausen made the second. All voted aye. Evan Workman gave 
the staff report. Wesley Bulla of 108 General JB Hood Dr, Franklin TN 37069 and his 
sister Denise Heckman, 300 Oakgrove Dr, Graham NC. Both came forward to talk about 
this project and to answer any questions. Chair Zipporah Clark Baldwin made a motion 
to close the public hearing, Ben Beushausen made the second. All voted aye. Chair 
Zipporah Clark Baldwin made a motion to approve COA 2506, Ben Beushausen made the 
second motion. All voted aye.  

 
 
                                         
                    
Staff updates: 
 

a. City Council- Joey Parsons had no updates.         
                         

b. Staff- Evan Workman had no updates 
 

Adjournment- Chair Zipporah Clark Baldwin made the motion to adjourn the meeting. Jim Young made 
the second.  All voted Aye.                 

Meeting adjourned – 6:26 p.m. 
 
Minutes respectfully submitted, Jennifer Bost 

March 17th, 2025 

 

 

 



STAFF REPORT 
Prepared by Evan Workman, Planner 

COA 2502, 7 SE Court Square 

Type of Request: Certificate of Appropriateness 

Meeting Dates 
Historic Resources Commission 
March 4th, 2025 
April 1st, 2025 

Summary  
The applicant is requesting approval of a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) for the following areas located 
at 7 SE Court Sq., Graham, NC 27253: 
 

1. Replacement of existing windows. 

The owner at 7 SE Court Sq. has requested permission to replace damaged and unrepairable existing windows 
with double hung low e windows which look substantially similar to the current ones. This is considered a 
major change and requires a COA review and approval by the HRC.  This item was tabled last month.   

 

 

Location 
7 SE Court Sq. 

Graham, NC 27253 
 Parcel: 145872 



 
Existing: 
 

 
 
 
 
Proposed: 

 



…  

The sections of the handbook below may be helpful to the commission: 
 

B. Building Exteriors  

8. Windows: Windows and doors contribute to the architectural style and character of buildings through their 
location, size, proportion, shape, and pattern of placement. Because of their strong link to and indication of the 
architecture and style of a building, original windows and doors should be maintained, repaired when 
necessary, and preserved as one of the defining elements of a historic structure. 

 
B.8.5 Preserve the original size and shape of upper story windows.  

 

B.8.7 If windows are damaged beyond repair and must be replaced, match the original window material, 
window pattern and configuration, dimensions, design, and any other key detailing as closely as possible. 

 

… 

 

Motion Language: 
I have thoroughly researched the application and all other documents related to COA 2502 and I am 
familiar with the property in question.  
 
Finding of Fact: 
And I find that if produced in accordance with the plans submitted, the proposed changes will be 
Compatible [or] Incompatible with the character of the mid-nineteenth century Courthouse Square 
Historic District. 
 
Motion to Grant/Approve with Conditions/Deny COA: 
I move to Approve [or] Approve with conditions [or] Deny the application for COA 2502 for the property 
located at 7 SE Court Sq. as submitted because it does [or] does not meet the following criteria: 
 
If approve or deny… 
 
The proposed change(s) does [or] does not meet the Historic Resources Design Guidelines Standards. 
Therefore, the proposed changes are [or] are not compatible with the character of the district. 
 
If approve with conditions… 
 
If the following changes are made to the proposal such as: 
 
 (list all desired changes to the proposal and how they relate to the requirements in the design guidelines)  
 
then the project will meet the standards set out in the Design Guidelines and shall be permitted.  
 



 
Alternatively, the HRC may choose to table the item until the next meeting 
I move to table COA 2502 for 7 SE Court Sq. in order for the Commission to seek guidance pursuant to the 
NC GS 160D-9-47(d). The application will be acted upon within a reasonable time period not to exceed 
180 days. 
 
 
Alternatively, the HRC may choose to deny the application as incomplete…  
I move to deny COA 2502 for 7 SE Court Sq. in order to provide sufficent time for the applicant to submit 
a complete application in an effort to determine what relevant standards are being met and/or 
neglected by the project. 











STAFF REPORT 
Prepared by Evan Workman, Planner 

COA 2507, 106 W Elm Street 

Type of Request: Certificate of Appropriateness 

Meeting Dates 
Historic Resources Commission 
April 1st, 2025 

Summary  
The applicant is requesting approval of a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) for the following areas located 
at 106 W Elm St., Graham, NC 27253: 
 

1. Window signs on multiple window panels. 

The owner at 106 W Elm St. has requested permission to replace the existing signs on the store front windows 
with new signs.  The original signs were never permitted and these are signs on multiple panes. This is 
considered a major change and requires a COA review and approval by the HRC.   

 

 
 
 
 
 

Location 
106 W Elm St. 

Graham, NC 27253 
 Parcel: 145828 



 
Existing: 
 
 

 
 
 
Proposed: 
 

 



…  

The sections of the handbook below may be helpful to the commission: 
 

Appendix A- Historic Signs 
Window signs are encouraged but shall be limited to one square foot per linear foot* of the first-floor 
facade to which the sign will be affixed, not to exceed a total of 12 square feet. Window signage is limited 
to a single pane of glass. However, the Historic Resources Commission may approve alternate window 
sign installations either in excess of 12 square feet, or across multiple panes if they meet the standard 
depicted in the image shown in Section 6. Signs of the Design Standards. *If a window sign is proposed 
on a multi-use building the linear feet will be measured per business frontage and not calculated based on 
the width of the entire building/facade. (HRC Approved 5/14/19) 

 

 

… 

 

Motion Language: 
I have thoroughly researched the application and all other documents related to COA 2507 and I am 
familiar with the property in question.  
 
Finding of Fact: 
And I find that if produced in accordance with the plans submitted, the proposed changes will be 
Compatible [or] Incompatible with the character of the mid-nineteenth century Courthouse Square 
Historic District. 
 
Motion to Grant/Approve with Conditions/Deny COA: 
I move to Approve [or] Approve with conditions [or] Deny the application for COA 2507 for the property 
located at 106 W Elm St. as submitted because it does [or] does not meet the following criteria: 
 
If approve or deny… 
 
The proposed change(s) does [or] does not meet the Historic Resources Design Guidelines Standards. 
Therefore, the proposed changes are [or] are not compatible with the character of the district. 
 
If approve with conditions… 
 
If the following changes are made to the proposal such as: 
 
 (list all desired changes to the proposal and how they relate to the requirements in the design guidelines)  
 
then the project will meet the standards set out in the Design Guidelines and shall be permitted.  
 
 
Alternatively, the HRC may choose to table the item until the next meeting 



I move to table COA 2507 for 106 W Elm St. in order for the Commission to seek guidance pursuant to the 
NC GS 160D-9-47(d). The application will be acted upon within a reasonable time period not to exceed 
180 days. 
 
 
Alternatively, the HRC may choose to deny the application as incomplete…  
I move to deny COA 2507 for 106 W Elm St. in order to provide sufficent time for the applicant to submit 
a complete application in an effort to determine what relevant standards are being met and/or 
neglected by the project. 







STAFF REPORT 
Prepared by Evan Workman, Planner 

COA 2419, 112 N Main St. 

Type of Request: Certificate of Appropriateness 

Meeting Dates 
Historic Resources Commission 
December 3rd, 2024 
April 1st, 2024 

Summary  
The applicant is requesting approval of a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) for the following areas located 
at 112 N Main., Graham, NC 27253: 
 

1. Install of black posts and a smaller light grey shade sails as well as the installation of planters to 
define the space. 

The business owner at 112 N Main. has requested permission to install an outdoor shade area using a canopy 
and installing planters to help make an outdoor seating space with shade and tables that were approved by staff 
as a minor COA. This is considered a major change and requires a COA review and approval by the HRC.  
This is an update to an item that was denied in December with changes the applicant believes will help it fit in 
the historical area better. 

 

 
 
 
 

Location 
112 N Main St. 

Graham, NC 27253 
 Parcel: 145848 



Proposed- original (denied): 
 

 
 
 
Update: 

 
 

…  



The sections of the handbook below may be helpful to the commission: 
 

Landscape Features 

A.2.6 New plant materials should be appropriate in species and scale to existing materials.  
A.2.8 Plantings should not interfere with utility lines, sidewalks, or pedestrian traffic.  
A.2.9 Landscape designs which are not in keeping with the historical character of the district are not 
allowed where visible from the street. The use of grass, ivy, or other low green covers is strongly 
encouraged, in place of large mulched areas. Gravel should not be used as a ground cover.  
 
10. Awnings  
Movable canvas awnings have been used for years to provide shade and help cool temperatures during 
the summer months. They can be raised in the winter when radiant heat from the sun will give free 
supplementary warming. Fabric awnings can still provide the same benefits today while adding color 
and interest to the structure. 
 
B.10.2 New awnings should be complementary and compatible in placement, proportion, and color to 
the building’s original fixtures; with the structure’s size, scale, and style; and to existing awnings and 
canopies of adjacent buildings. See Appendix C for Sunbrella awning colors which may be approved with 
a minor COA. Amended by HRC on 3/13/18. 
B.10.3 Awnings must be constructed of a fabric or cloth material meeting all local, state, and federal 
safety and fire standards 
… 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



… 
Motion Language: 

I have thoroughly researched the application and all other documents related to COA 2419 and I am 
familiar with the property in question.  
 
Finding of Fact: 
And I find that if produced in accordance with the plans submitted, the proposed changes will be 
Compatible [or] Incompatible with the character of the mid-nineteenth century Courthouse Square 
Historic District. 
 
Motion to Grant/Approve with Conditions/Deny COA: 
I move to Approve [or] Approve with conditions [or] Deny the application for COA 2419 for the property 
located at 112 N Main. as submitted because it does [or] does not meet the following criteria: 
 
If approve or deny… 
 
The proposed change(s) does [or] does not meet the Historic Resources Design Guidelines Standards. 
Therefore, the proposed changes are [or] are not compatible with the character of the district. 
 
If approve with conditions… 
 
If the following changes are made to the proposal such as: 
 
 (list all desired changes to the proposal and how they relate to the requirements in the design guidelines)  
 
then the project will meet the standards set out in the Design Guidelines and shall be permitted.  
 
 
Alternatively, the HRC may choose to table the item until the next meeting 
I move to table COA 2419 for 112 N Main. in order for the Commission to seek guidance pursuant to the 
NC GS 160D-9-47(d). The application will be acted upon within a reasonable time period not to exceed 
180 days. 
 
 
Alternatively, the HRC may choose to deny the application as incomplete…  
I move to deny COA 2419 for 112 N Main. in order to provide sufficent time for the applicant to submit a 
complete application in an effort to determine what relevant standards are being met and/or neglected 
by the project. 











 

P.O. Drawer 357 
201 South Main Street 

Graham, North Carolina 27253 
www.cityofgraham.com 

 

 
 
 
 
December 4th, 2024 
 
Little Oblivion Brewing Co 
112 N Main St 
Graham NC 
 
  
RE: COA2419- 112 N Main St- Outdoor Shade Structure and Planters 
  
Hello, 
 
The purpose of the Historic Resources Commission is to safeguard important elements of 
Graham’s culture, history, and architectural history to preserve those districts and landmarks for 
the education, pleasure and enrichment of residents and visitors. The Commission is charged 
with reviewing COA applications to determine if the project is in keeping with the Historic District 
Design Guidelines.  
 
COA2419 to install a shade structure and planters outside at 112 N Main St was Denied at the 
December 3rd, 2024 Historic Resource Commission Meeting. 
 
You can reapply if the application or request changes.   

 
If you have any further questions please contact the City of Graham Planner, Evan Workman at 
eworkman@cityofgraham.com | (336)570-6705  

 

Sincerely, 
Evan Workman 
City of Graham 
Planner 


	4-1-25 Agenda
	2025_HRC_March 4, 2025
	COA2502  Staff Report - Major
	COA 2502- visuals
	COA 2502- App
	COA2507  Staff Report - Major
	goose's rta
	COA2507- App
	COA2419 Update  Staff Report - Major - Copy
	thumbnail_Screenshot 2025-03-14 at 2.07.54 PM
	Document- Update
	COA2419_Denial Letter

